Planning and Development
Department

Cabarrus County Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
January 10, 2012
7:00 P.M.
Board of Commissioners Meeting Room
Cabarrus County Governmental Center

Agenda

1. Roll Call

2. Approval December 2011 Minutes

3. Meeting Minutes Correction

4, Proposed Text Changes (Chapter 3 and Permitted Use Table)

5. Directors Report

Cabarrus County — Planning and Development Department
65 Church Street SE (28025) « P.O. Box 707 » Concord, North Carolina 28026-0707
Phone: 704.920.2141 Fax: 704.920.2227 web: www.cabarruscounty.us




Cabarrus County Government — Planning and Development Department

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

Mr. Todd Berg, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m. (due to technical
difficulties). Members present, in addition to the Chair, were: Ms. Mary Blakeney, Ms.
Brenda Cook, Mr. Eugene Divine, Mr. Danny Fesperman, Ms. Shannon Frye, Ms. Emily
Knudson, Mr. James Litaker, Mr. Richard Price and Mr. Aaron Ritchie. Attending from
the Planning and Development Department were, Ms. Susie Motris, Planning and Zoning
Manager, Ms. Arlena Roberts, Clerk to the Board, and Mr. Richard Koch, County
Attorney. '

Roll Call
Approval of December 13, 2011, Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes.

Mr. Aaron Ritchie, MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. James Litaker to APPROVE the
December 13, 2011 minutes. The vote was unanimous.

Ms. Morris said an incorrect document was attached to the original October 21, 2010
minutes. The Board needs to approve the minutes with the correct document attached.
The minutes will be replaced with the correct document and a corrected copy will be sent
to the state archives office in Raleigh.

Approval of the corrections to the October 21, 2010, Planning and Zoning Commission
Minutes.

Mr. Aaron Ritchie, MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. James Litaker to APPROVE the
“QOctober 21, 2010 minutes. The vote was unanimous.

Proposed Text Changes to Chapter 3 and the Permitted Use Table

Ms. Mortis said Chapter 3 and the Permitted Use Table are being presented together
because they are the controlling documents for everything else. The Board has seen the
permitted use table, but has not seen Chapter 3.

She said based on the changes that were made to the table, the text in Chapter 3 was
amended. She said what is in the table is reflective in the text; it is essentially expanding
those list to make sure that they matched.

She said at the end of Chapter 3, it talks about the Planned Unit Development Standards.
We have not had anyone that has opted for Planned Unit Development Standards. She

Cabarrus County - Planning and Development Department - 65 Church Street, SE - Post Office Box 707, Concord, NC
28026-0707, Phone: 704-920-2141 — Fax: 704-920-2227— www.cabarruscounty.us



Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

said one reason may be because typically, if they want to do a mixed use development the
cities will have them annexed for utilities. :

Ms. Morris said anything in this chapter that has been changed is indicated in red and
deleted text has been marked through.

Page 1, is about Conditional Use and Accessory Use; no changes were made. Page 2,
talks about Zoning Districts; some cleanup work was done on this page. She said
sometimes in this text it talks about zones, it doesn’t talk about districts; so those are a lot
of the changes that were made to get everything in line. It talks about the map of the
zoning districts that it is to be kept in the Zoning Administrator’s office. No changes in
that particular section.

Page 3, Statements regarding the purpose of zoning districts and the Agricultural Open
Space district is not changing unless the Board sces something that should be changed.
At first, she thought the hamlet type settlement should be changed, but when you look at
the definition of hamlet, it talks about rural community, so that it is appropriate to what
would happen with that particular zoning district.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Agricultural Open Space District.

Ms. Morris said Farmland Preservation talks about some farmland. She said that could
be 100 acres or 1000 acres, so for clarification it was changed in general to farmland
preservation.

She said some uses were added to the Agriculture/Open Space (AO) uses to be consistent
with the table that we worked through in September/October 2011. The new items are in
red text. She asked the Board to look at the added uses and deleted uses to see if there is
anything that they thought would not be appropriate for the Agriculture/Open (AO)
zoning district. In this district a 3 acre minimum is required for a conventional lot. She
said you can have a 1 acre lot, but it is very limited on what types of commercial uses can
go there.

The Chair asked if there was any significance to the blue text on the retail sales.

Ms. Morris said the blue text corresponds to a change that was made in the table to things
that we have already talked about.

We have received some calls recently about using facilities for church retreats and things
like that. Where you see the day camp and summer camp, we added Civic Group Camp,
which includes Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts and churches.

The next step is to make sure that every one of these items that is listed on the table has a
definition. She said at this point there are a lot of things that don’t have definitions.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

Ms. Morris did get the shooting range worked out with the Sherriff and will bring that
text back to the Board in Chapter 8.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Agriculture /Open Space Uses.

To clean up the language in Countryside Residential (CR), the site sensitive design
concept and the clustering option has been deleted because it is no longer in the
Ordinance. We now have the open space and the amenity type subdivisions which
essentially act as a clustering option. We used to have the clustering option and the
conventional option.

Some typos were corrected in the Rationale section and public utilities were deleted.
Countryside Residential (CR) does not allow public utilities; therefore it is not
appropriate for it to talk about having access to public utilities.

Ms. Morris asked the Board review the Countryside Residential Uses list. The new items
are in red text.

She said the wireless telecommunications services has been added and includes co-
location, stealth antennae, 65 feet or less and new tower. The ordinance says that if it is
65 feet or less they do not have to get a Conditional Use Permit. Co-locations are
administrative and new towers are what the Board will see as a Conditional Use.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Countryside Residential Uses list.

In the Low Density Residential District (LDR), because it is not zones, the word zones
were replaced with the word district. Low Density Residential District is optional for
utilities; it could be somewhere where there are no utilities or where there might be
utilities.

She said there were no changes in the Rationale. The Low Density Residential (LDR)
Uses in red are the same thing because a lot of them are the temporary uses that we did
not have in the Ordinance that are now in the Permitted Use Table, plus listed the Cell
Tower information.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Low Density Residential District
Uses list.

In the Medium Density Residential (MDR) description there were some wording
changes; no changes in the Rationale. Uses were added to Medium Density Residential
(MDR) District Permitted Uses list so that it is consistent.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Medium Density Residential
District Uses list.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

Ms. Morris said as we work our way down through the districts, they all will have uses
added until we get to the General Commercial.

She said there were no changes with High Density Residential/Mixed Use over all intent
or the Rationale; added uses in the High Density Residential Mixed Use District.

Mr. Price asked what the difference is between a communications tower and a 911 tower.

Ms. Morris said the communication tower and the 911 towers are not intended to be cell
towers where non-emergency equipment would be located. An example would be the
tower in Midland by the fire station; that is a communications tower, not a cell tower. She
said the County or the City builds communications towers; its main purpose is for
emergency services or the repeaters and things like that to increase radio service.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the High Density Residential District
Uses list.

The Office and Institutional District language was cleaned up. She said to be consistent
with what we have done in other places, in the Rationale section, zones was changed to
districts, and where it says when bordering residential zones, that was changed to
residential districts or residential developments to make sure that they are compatible.

Ms. Morris said this is our short list. This is the transitional district, so there are not a
whole lot of uses here that would be considered heavy commercial uses. It is more things
that would be related to neighborhood services or churches and schools.

She said some items have been marked through. The Mobile office, temporary, is actually
handled now in Temporary uses. Residential is not allowed in this district, there was
some conflicting information; that is why you see Townhouses, Home Occupation and
Multifamily Residential marked out. The chart said it wasn’t allowed, the text said it
was, but it was clear from the conversations that it was not to be a residential district; it
was a transitional district between residential and other districts.

Mr. Berg asked if there could be a situation where there was an existing home that would
be nonconforming and someone wanted to convert it to a home occupation business.

Ms. Morris said there might be, but we would look at it as a nonconforming use. We do
not have a lot of Office Institutional (OI) and any OI that is out there was intentionally
put in place at that time. So, we may have one, but we would look at it as nonconforming
and this would handle anything new.

She said very little change to Commercial Districts - Office/Limited Commercial;
addressed the bordering on residential districts or residential development and adding the
uses that were added to the Table; making sure that they match up. The chart did not
address duplexes, but they were allowed as a commercial use. Cleanup work was done on
this section and the temporary uses were added.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

The Board made no additional recommendations to Commercial Districts (Office
/Limited Commercial)

Ms. Morris said cleanup work was done to the General Commetrcial District and added
the uses and clarifying those uses so that they are consistent with the Table. She asked the
Board if they an opinion either way about the flea market, as long as it is indoor only.

The Board did not make any comments about the flea market.
She will edit the Pharmaceutical Supply to read Pharmaceutical or Medical supply.
The Board made no additional recommendations to the Commercial Districts

Ms. Morris said cleanup work was done to the Industrial District on the definition; no
changes to the Rationale; making sure that the chart is same. There were some uses here
that did not seem to make a lot of sense; for example, the Hotels, Motels and Inns in the
indusirial area. She said the Table said one thing and the text said one thing, so we went
with not having them in the Industrial District.

She asked Board if they thought it was something appropriate for a Light Industrial
District. It seems like it should be more in the Commercial District.

The Board agreeé that it should be in the Commercial District.

Ms. Mortris said it also had Banks in the Light Industrial District. When you start looking
at that, you start running into things that are in the Light Industrial that would be subject
to the Commercial Design Standards. She said a lot of it did not make sense.

The Chair asked if the free standing ATM is a permitted use in the Industrial District.

Ms. Morris said it should not be a permitted use in the Industrial District unless the Board
thinks that it is appropriate to be in a light industrial business park or something like that.
But, again it gets into that whole design standard, because it is classified as a commercial
use.

The Chair said it is probably best to leave it as you have it.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Industrial District.

Ms. Morris said some cleanup work was done in the General Industrial District. The last
sentence of the Rationale of the General Industrial was changed to include that these are
being sited near transportation such as rail lines, airports, etc., not just the major
roadways. The text was cleaned up and the uses were added so that it is consistent with

what is in the Table.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the General Industrial District.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

Ms. Morris said in the Planned Unit Development (PUD) there were no changes to the
Intent or the Rationale. The Processing Procedures were cleaned up to state what needs
to be shown, how the process happens, and lets them know that they are eligible for the
expedited zoning process.

When talking about a density of up to 18 units per acre, unless someone provides utilities
without making them annex, we probably will not see a lot of these types of
developments. She said if something would change policy wise, then this would be
available if someone wanted to take advantage of it. At this point, unless they had the
utilities, they would be looking at trying to do this type of a development with well and
septic and those densities just do not work and depending on what type of nonresidential
uses they picked it may or may not work there either.

She said in the Open Spaces, added that it should be designed with Section 5-8A. This is
where it talks about the primary and secondary open space, to make sure that floodplains
and steep slopes into the open space and that they are not damaged.

She said with the Design Standards there is some flexibility. She said the last sentence in
the Design Standards description was incomplete and the following sentence was added
to complete the sentence: shall be incorporated where appropriate to the greatest extent
possible. She said this will give the Board some flexibility when looking at this.

When we went through the Architectural Elements, we tried to get it as covenants to the
property so that we would not have to review every house plan, or every plan that came
through, and that they would also have to submit residential guidelines and examples to
the Board so you could see what the fagades would look like for commercial and what the
elevations looked like for the residential; conceptual drawings, lighting and signage.

She asked if there was anything the Board would want to see if we do have one of these
types of developments come in or if there was anything they did not want to see that
needed to be removed from the list.

The Board made no additional recommendations to the Architectural Elements.

Ms. Morris said the neighborhood scale recreation facilities and amenities were added in.
We are now subject to Phase 2, Post Construction Permitting for stormwater. This lets

them know that they need to be using best management practices as defined by
NCDENR.

The Transportation Elements was change to read that park-and-ride lots may be
incorporated along planned public transportation routes. She said it doesn’t make a lot of
sense to have them put in a park-and-ride lot if there is not a bus that is going to pick
people up.

The Landscaping and Buffering elements let them know that it is out there. It also lets
them know that we have a requirement which states that they must have at least a 1 acre




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

lot in order to have the river stream overlay buffer or the waterbody overlay buffer on
their lot.

No changes to Parking.

The Submittal Requirements was cleaned up and incorporated the Architectural Elements
into the covenants. She said this is what we did in Chapter 5 for the anti-monotony
standards.

She said it also talks about having to have a Professional Design Team and what happens
if they want to modify the plan.

Ms. Morris asked the Board if they were okay with Chapter 3 and moving forward with
what the uses are and getting the other chapters in sync with it.

Tt was the consensus of the Board to except the text changes to Chapter 3.

Ms. Morris presented the changes and additions to the Permitted Use Table. She added
the reference to the Mobile Home Park. She had to do some renumbering to the chart and
that is why some of them are still in red; some of the numbers have changed. She said
Agritourism and the Barn and Greenhouse are new uses. She said this is still consistent
with what you have looked at before.

The changes are mainly with the Adult Oriented businesses. She said the Sherriff’s
office requested that we put something in; but the more they thought about it, and after
talking with other jurisdictions, they decided that it was not something that we needed to
do because it was geared more toward bars, night clubs and things like that. We will
keep the Adult Use but there will be no Adult Oriented Businesses added. She said if
someone wanted to open a bar, they cannot do that in the County because the County is
dry. There are regulations that are related to pool halls in the County Code, so some of
those things would have been covered and may overlap. It just seemed like the best thing
from their perspective was to not add it because these things kind of take care of
themselves either with State regulations or County Code regulations.

Ms. Morris spoke with the Sherriff about Pawn shops, and he thought we should be
consistent with that and keep that in the same places that Gunsmiths would be allowed
because sometimes they go hand in hand. Pawn shop was added to the Limited
Commercial and General Commercial because Gunsmiths are allowed there.

The Towing Service, no towed vehicle storage on the lot, this is not exactly how that was
stated the first time that the Board saw it. She said this would allow someone to have a
towing service and to be able to store their own tow trucks, car haulers or vehicles like
that on the site, but it would not allow them to store other people’s vehicles there.

We kept the Temporary Uses chart and added some additional information to let them
know that they have to go look at the text because it only applies inx, y, and z situations.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

In Transportation Related, clarified the Charter Bus Company, Travel Agency with On-
Site Bus Storage and where that would be permitted.

Ms. Mortis said we went through the lists and if the Board is okay with those lists, they
correspond to the Table and that is what we will use. We will rectify Chapters 7 and 8
back to this. She said everything comes back to this.

The Chair asked if they should act on Chapter 3 and the Table.

Ms. Morris thinks it would be better for the Board to act on Chapter 3, the combined
Table, Chapter 7 and Chapter 8 together. She said there are some minor changes to be
made to Chapters 7 and 8 to rectify back to the Table and then the definitions chapter.
Then they could move forward with those five together.

She said there would be no action tonight as long as there is no direction for staff to go
back and look at anything else besides the one correction.

It was the consensus of the Board to accept the text changes to the Table.
Director Report

Ms. Morris said we have not heard anything else on the APFO. Historically, the last
week of January is when they release decisions.

Mr. Koch updated the Board on the Ben Small case. Mr. Koch thinks Mr. Smalls appeal
time ran until yesterday or today or that it may have expired by now. He said there is a
three day mail factor built into the rules and Mr. Small could have filed something and
Mr. Koch just has not received his copy yet.

He said Mr. Small’s neighbor, Mr. Richards, still calls to inquire about the progress and
is probably expecting us to do something about having that building torn down.

Mr. Koch said that would be the next step if Mr. Small has not appeal. If he does appeal
it would go to the Court of Appeals and that is a little more involved than the appeal to
the Superior Court.

Ms. Morris said the APFO was not adjusted this year the Board of Commissioners tabled
it pending the Supreme Court decision. It would have called for an increase this year
based on the cost of construction. We are still at the 2010 amount because there was no
adjustment last year which would have also been an increase.

Mr. Price asked what the fee is.

Ms. Morris said currently it is close to $8,000 and it was $7,000 something and it would
have gone up 3 or 4 hundred dollars.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
January 10, 2012

There being no further discussion, Mr. Danny Fesperman MOTIONED, SECONDED
BY Mr. Aaron Ritchie to ADJOURN the meeting. The meeting ended at 7:58 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

Todd Berg, Chairma

SUBMITTED BY:

Arlena B. Roberts

ATTEST BY:

oy i

"\\ ( 11 e
usie Morris

Planning and Zoning Manager




To:

Fronm:

CC:

Date:

Re:

_DEVELOPMENT

Planning and Zoning Commission

Susie Morris, AICP, CZO, Planning and Zoning Manager
File

1/4/2012

Meeting Minutes Correction

Attached you will find the meeting minutes from the October 21, 2010 mesting.

When the minutes were approved, a document was attached to the minutes as an exhibit
(Wallace Hills Tack Shop Findings of Fact) that was incorrect.

The minutes need to be corrected to reflect the proper document as the attachment.

The Planning and Zoning Commission will need to consider the revised minutes and then vote
on the minutes and the Findings of Fact.




Commerce Department
Planning Division

Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
Qctober 21, 2010

Mr. Todd Berg, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m. Members present, in
addition to the Chair were: Ms. Mary Blakeney, Mr. Larry Ensley, Mr. Danny

Fesperman, Mr. Ted Kluttz, Ms. Emily Knudson, Mr. Tommy Porter and Mr. Barry
Shoemaker. Ms. Shannon Frye arrived at 7:20 p.m. and was seated after the start of the
meeting. Attending from the Planning and Zoning Division were, Ms. Susie Morris,
Planning and Zoning Manager, Ms. Kassiec Watts, Senior Planner, Mr. Jay Lowe, Senior -
Zoning Officer, Ms. Arlena Roberts, Clerk to the Board and Mr. Richard Koch, County
Attorney.

The Oath of Office was administered to reappoint Mr. Eugene Divine.
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes

Mr. Tommy Porter, MOTIONED, SECONDED by Mr. Ted Kluttz to APPROVE the
September 16, 2010 meeting minutes. The vote was unanimous.

New Business - Planning Board Function:

The Chair introduced Petition RZON2010-00006 - Petitioners: Tony & Perry
Freeze, PIN#5529-91-4865.

Ms. Kassie Watts, Senior Planner, addressed the Board presenting the staff report for
Petition RZON2010-00006 — Zoning Atlas Amendment. This petition is a request by Mr.
Tony Freeze and Mr. Perry Freeze, property owners and applicants. The existing zoning
is Office Institutional (OI), and is 7.98 acres.

The property was rezoned during the 2005 County-wide rezoning from Low Density
Residential (LDR) to Office Institutional (OI); the applicant is requesting that it be
rezoned back to Low Density Residential (LDR).

The subject property is located adjacent to single family and institutional uses. The
surrounding zonings are Office Institutional (OI) to the north, Low Density Residential
(LDR) and Medium Density Residential (MDR) to the east. . To the south it is Low
Density Residential (LDR) and Office Institutional (OI), and to the west is Office
Institutional (OI).

®

Sy
Cabarrus County ° Commerce Department ¢ 65 Church Street, SE o Post Office Box 707 e Congord, NC 28026-0707 @@@gﬁ"ﬂjg@@wﬁ
0

The Center of American Motarsporis:
HORTH C.

Phone: 704-920-2141 ¢ Fax: 704-920-2144 ¢ www.cabarruscounty.us AROLINA

ol




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

The subject property is located within the City of Concord Service Area and the Utility
Service Boundary established as a part of the Central Area Land Use Plan. The applicant
is not requesting utilities for the subject property at this time. The applicant has a letter
from the City of Concord that is required as a part of the rezoning application stating that
they are not being required to annex at this time and they are not requesting utilities.

The request was sent out for comments to the different agencies. The standard comments
were received from WSACC regarding the utility boundary. There were some comments
from Soil and Water Conservation that were in the Board packets. The City of Concord
sent an additional formal comment that they had no objection or comment relative to the
proposed rezoning, however, should the developer seek development permits they would
reserve the right to evaluate that request at that time.

Ms. Watts said the Central Area Land Use Plan that was adopted in 2008 designates this
property as Low Density Residential (LDR) and is intended to allow for moderate density
residential, accommodating community development. The area is to be predominantly
used for single-family residential with density up to 2 units per acre, or up to 3 units per
‘acre, provided additional development standards are met.

She said this rezoning, as proposed, is consistent with the Central Area Land Use Plan. It
is a conventional rezoning request; therefore, all uses that are permitted in the Low

" Density Residential (LDR) district would have to be considered as possible uses on the
subject property.

Mr. Tony Freeze, Applicant, 2906 Montford Avenue NW, Concord, NC, addressed the
Board. He is co-owner of the property with his brother and they are interested in getting
the property rezoned back to what it was originally. They did not request that it be zoned
Office Institutional (OI). He said some of the neighboring properties have already come
before the board to be rezoned from Office Institutional (OI) back to Low Density
Residential (LDR).

There being no further discussion, Mr. Barry Shoemaker, MOTIONED, SECONDED
by Mr. Ted Kluttz to Approve Petition RZON2010-00006. The vote was unanimous.

Consistency Statement:

The Chair stated that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Central Area Plan and
is reasonable and in the public interest.

There being no further discussion, it was the consensus of the Board to Approve the
Consistency Statement.

New Business - Planning Board Function:

The Chair introduced Petition PLPR2010-00029 - Preliminary Plat Approval - Olive
Woods Subdivision




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

Ms. Kassie Watts, Senior Planner, addressed the Board presenting the staff report for
Petition PLPR2010-00029, Preliminary Plat Approval for the Olive Woods Subdivision,
2 conventional subdivision. The applicant is Mr. Wayne Cline, acting as the Power of
Attorney (POA), for his mother, Ms. Emily Cline.

Ms. Watts said the zoning is Agricultural Open Space (AO), located on Mt. Olive Road.
There are two parcels that are involved.

Ms. Watts said a minor subdivision allows you up to five lots and anything beyond that is
considered a major subdivision, which is the case here. She said Mr. Cline has done a
minor subdivision and is now moving into the major part, which is this additional number
of lots.

She said the subject property is currently vacant and wooded and it is surrounded by
farm, forestry and residential uses on all sides. It has Agricultural Open (AO) space all
around it. These properties will be served by wells and septic tanks which are already
identified on the lots. The staff report includes the code considerations and it was
reviewed by all of the agencies. She said there are some conditions that staff recommends
be included with the application should it be approved.

Staff finds that the proposed subdivision meets all of the development standards of the
Cabarrus County Subdivision and Zoning Ordinance.

Should the Planning and Zoning Commission grant approval of the subdivision, staff
request that the following conditions be applied as part of the approval:

1. The developer shall enter into an Adequate Public Facilities Mitigation Agreement with the
Cabarrus County Board of Commissioners to address school adequacy. (Ms. Watts said in
this particular. case, this assessment has already been done and it has been found that all
the schools impacted by this project were not over capacity, 5o there will not be a
mitigation payment or phasing schedule required for this project).

2. The developer must obtain driveway permits from NCDOT prior to final platting.

3. Permits for the disturbance of streams and other wetlands must be requested from the
North Carolina Division of Water Quality and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers prior to
any impacts.

4. Each lot shall be subject to Sediment and Erosion Control Plan review and approval,
from the North Carolina Department of Environmental and Natural Resources, prior to
the issuance of zoning permits. ;

5. Each lot shall be subject to Phase II Post-Construction Stormwater Permit review and
approval, by the North Carolina Division of Water Quality, prior to the issuance of

" zoning permits. :

6. Should any changes be required as a result of review by these agencies, the applicant
shall resubmit to the Planning and Zoning Board for approval of a revised project
design.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

7. Copies of Post-Construction Stormwater, Driveway and Soil and Erosion Control |

Permits shall be provided as part of zoning permitting process for the permanent project
file.

Ms. Watts said the proposed conditions given by staff address the comments provided by the
service providers. '

Mr. Wayne Cline, 165 Earles Fort Road, Landrum, SC, Applicant, addressed the Board, stating
that he is representing his mother Emily Cline and will answer any questions the Board may
have. '

Mr. Danny Fesperman asked how Mr. Cline was doing with NCDOT on this, as far as the cuts
coming out onto the road.

M. Cline said prior to final platting, he is to get with NCDOT at that time and work out the
appropriate arrangements for the driveway permit. He said the original statement from
NCDOT suggested no more than four driveways, but because one of the parcels has already
been sold and the person is already constructing a home with a driveway, which had been
approved; the implication is that there would be five driveway entries on Mt. Olive Road rather
than the stated four. He said that could possibly change based on NCDOT’s final decision, but
he doubts that it will be more than five. :

The Chair asked Mr. Cline if he agreed to the staff recommendations.
Mr. Cline said yes.

Mr. Barry Shoemaker said if we approve this with the conditions as noted by staff, how long
would the approval be valid or how long would Mr. Cline have to begin the subdivision?

Ms. Motris said once a preliminary plat is approved, they have up to two years to file a final
plat. Tt would be carried on the books for two years, once they file a final plat, even if it is only
one lot, that re-ups the two years. For example if they have five lots and they platted one every
two years, their approval could inevitably be good for ten years.

Ms. Morris said the applicant has their reservation of capacity and if the conditions of approval
are approved, we ask that the applicant places that on the final plat so that it becomes public
record and is a part of the project record. She said staff recommends the seven conditions that
were read, plus that they revise the plat to put that information on it. ‘

Ms. Shannon Frye said if the applicant has an existing permit for an existing lot, is that already
a part of the two original tracts? She is trying to figure out how that goes along with the
conditions that are stipulated by staff as a part of the plat, and if that one lot part is a part of this
configuration or is that an existing lot.

Ms. Watts said the Ordinance allows you to cut up to five lots out of your tract and it is
considered a minor subdivision; meaning it does not have to comie before the Board and so it is

4




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

held to a different set of standards. She said when Mr. Cline talked about the lot having a
house being built on it, that is one of those lots and it was allowed to be approved
administratively by staff. Once it gets to that five, anything beyond that begins to count as a
major subdivision and has to come before you as a board. So, the conditions that are on this
do not apply to those other lots, but they will apply to these. -

There being no further discussion, Mr. Barry Shoemaker, MOTIONED, SECONDED
by Mr. Ted Klutiz to Approve Petition PLPR2010-00029 — Preliminary Plat Approval,
Olive Woods Subdivision, with conditions recommend by staff. The vote was
unanimous. ' :

(The Chair moved the Architectural Design Review up on the Agenda).

New Business — Planning Board as Design Review Committee
Architectural Design Review for Wallace Hill Tack Shop

The Chair introduced Axchitectural Design Review for Wallace Hill Tack Shop

Mr. Jay Lowe, Senior Zoning Officer, addressed the Board. He said this is an application
involving a Commercial Design Standards Review. This is a Planning Board Function
and the Board is acting as the Commercial Design Review Committee.

Mr. Lowe said the Applicant is Wallace Hill Tack Shop, Case# ZN2010-00106, the
applicant is Carlos Moore, Architect, of Concord, NC. The property owner is J. C. and
Marie Wallace, 5321 Odell School Road, Davidson NC. The zoning of the subject
property is Agricultural Open (AO); the location of the property is 5169 Odell School
Road, Davidson, NC, and the size of the property is 20.1 acres.

Mr. Lowe said the applicant is seeking deviations from the standards listed in Appendix
B, as part of the Design Review Committee process as outlined in Chapter 5, District
Development Standards, Section 5-9, Nonresidential Development Standards.

A letter from the Architect for the project, Ms. Ginger Moore, was attached to staff report
and described the areas where deviations are requested.

Staff has reviewed the application and the site plans and most of them seem to meet the
standards that the Ordinance requires. He said there are a few items that staff felt did not
meet the requirements. He said Ms. Moore is asking for deviation for those.

M. Lowe said that according to the Ordinance the Board has the ability to offer some
relief: it is not a variance procedure, and it specifically says that the Board has that ability
acting as the Review Committee.

Mr. Lowe said the applicant is asking for relief on the setbacks. The setbacks do not meet
the standards required by the Ordinance. The Ordinance requires that front building
setbacks be a minimum of 15 feet and a maximum of 25 feet. As proposed and currently




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

sited, the tack shop is approximately 67 feet from the edge of the right of way off of
Odell School Road. ‘

The applicant contends the proposed setback is in keeping with the character of the area.
(See applicant letter submitted in staff report item #8).

Mr. Lowe said the Building placement and the sidewalks do not meet standards required
by the Ordinance. It requires a minimum 5 foot sidewalks and a minimum 6 foot
landscape buffer between the road and the side walk.

The applicant contends the side walks are not appropriate for the project area. (See
applicant letter submitted in staff report item #1).

The parking requirements do not meet standards required by the Ordinance. The
Ordinance requires that parking areas shall be located primarily to the rear of the
structure. The site plan shows parking in the front of the building between the building
and the right of way.

The applicant contends that parking is in keeping with character of the aréa with historic
use and location of this type of structure. (See applicant letter submitted in staff report
item #8).

Mr. Lowe said they meet most of everything else until you get down to massing and
thythm. The applicant turned in a document today to address that issue and a copy was
placed at each seat for review this evening. ’ -

Mr. Lowe said included in the staff report were photos of some houses to give the
Board an idea of the architecture in that area.

Ms. Ginger Moore, Applicant, 74 Spring Street, NW, Concord, NC, addressed the Board.
She said historically, most country stores and rural commercial buildings were situated
close to the road for easy visibility with the parking area immediately in front of the. '
building. These buildings usually had generous front porches with benches and display
items. These buildings and parking areas were also usually situated near shade trees in
order to invite the user in and invite them to stay a while.

She said this started before the automobile, with horses and carriages often tied to the
front of the buildings for ease of access and to keep them within the public eye to
discourage theft, The location of the front parking for rural country stores remained the
same even after the introduction of the automobile. She said numerous businesses and
general stores trying to catch the attention of passing motorists sprang up along the
country roads. The rural locations provided more frontage room and less traffic than
more urban areas and parking therefore was located in front of the structure.

_ Users have come to expect a specific spatial layout that has been defined by their
previous experiences and that directly corresponds to ease of user wayfinding. Placing




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21,2010

the parking at the rear of the building would be opposite to what the normal user
experience would be in a rural setting at a country store type building.

She said the setback from the right of way that is created in this project between the edge
of the parking and the edge of the right of way is sufficient to provide space in order to
preserve the rural character, vegetation, and corridor view shed as well as allowing for
any future essential tree pruning and any future needed road signage. Our proposed front
parking lot will be screened from the road by existing and planted vegetation and will be
located directly behind and therefore screened from the road by an existing 8 foot high
berm. The actual parking lot is approximately 14 foot below the road elevation, thereby
naturally screening the parking lot from the view and meeting the intent of the ordinance..

Ms. Moore said the revised exterior elevations address the massing and thythm
comments in the staff report and the revised drawings show a change in the ridgeline on
the center section of the structure and is evident on all four sides of the exterior
elevations. On the rear elevation, the roof was extended approximately 6 feet for a
covered porch in front of the exit doors. We are asking for relief from the parking lot
and the building setbacks and the sidewalk.

Mr. Kluttz asked if there was grazing and pasture at the rear of the building.

Ms. Moore said to the rear of building is a 40 foot fall from the road down to where the
stables are and right behind the tack shop is another 8 foot berm, then it levels out and
beyond that is pasture. :

Ms. Shannon Frye asked any of the trees are included in the increased setback.

Ms. Moore said all of those trees will remain.

The Chair said the other building there that is off of the property, but it looks like you are
bringing the driveway by that building. He asked what the setbacks are of that building
in relation to what she is doing. He said it appears from the site plan that they are about
the same.

Ms. Moore does not know, but it is the same property owner.

Mr. Jay Lowe spoke with the owner who says it is about 75 feet.

The Chair said for the purposes of discussion, let’s break it down; we have the issue of
setbacks and sidewalks as one issue, then the rhythm and the fenestration which we will

address with the revised drawings.

He asked if there were any issues with the massing or the rhythm part of the design
review.

There were no comments on this issue.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

The Chair asked if there were any comments on the setbacks and the sidewalk.

Mr. Porter said it appears that what the applicant is asking for is consistent with what is
already in the area.

The Chair agrees; he also agrees with the point about the elevation change from the road
down to the building. He thinks that is also a factor to consider as far as the sidewalk
goes. He said it appears that it would be the only piece of sidewalk along that road in this
area.

Mr. Kluttz said it appears that the applicant is trying to be a good neighbor and designed
the project to be good stewards to the environment, to the scenery, and to the overall

fitting of the area.

M. Shoemaker asked if the property is adjacent to the Keith Wayne project on Odell
School Road. He guesses that it is a satellite annexation by Kannapolis.

Ms. Morris said the Wayne Brothers project was annexed into Kannapolis and it is zoned
Office Institutional (OI).

M. Shoemaker asked Ms. Moore how she is going to control the run off from the road
onto the property.

Ms. Moore said they have a state stormwater permit; drop inlets are in and it has gone
through that whole process. '

Mr. Shoemaler said the area in front of the berming will be rather flat and it will have
stormwater in it and it will be a flat area with grass on it. He said it will not be a
sidewalk but it will be a groomed area.

Ms. Moore said that is correct. She said that a ditch is in there now.

M. Shoemaker asked if the whole area in front of the property would be level across the
front and there will not be storm ditch drain would be there.

 Ms. Moore said, not necessarily. She said there is a swell there now and it is all going
down to a drop inlet. She said they are also catching the water from across Odell School
Road as well. There is a pipe under the road there and they are piping that off.

Mr. Shoemaker said when you look at it from the road angle will it come down and swell.

‘Ms. Moore said yes.

The Chair said it appears a swell may be in the NCDOT right of way.




Plannihg and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

Ms. Moore said it is. She said the drop inlet is right on the edge of the new right of way.

M. Shoemaker said one of the things we suffer with on country roads, is the fact that the
ditches on the sides of the roads are so deep and dangerous. He wanted to make sure that
" NCDOT had some standards for the swell so we do not get left with a deep ditch. He
said the applicant is asking for relief from sidewalks; he is still concerned about creating
something new and different.

The Chair thinks the ditch is probably in the NCDOT’s right of way and the aﬁplicant is
not doing anything with the ditch. ‘

Ms. Moore said that is correct.

M. Shoemaker said if we were to require sidewalks they would have to do something
about the ditch; they would have to put in storm sewer.

Ms. Mortis said the sidewalks would be outside of the right of way and in this particulat
case, because it is a site plan review, the applicant was required to get a soil and erosion
control permit because of the size of the project which also required them to get a Phase
Tl Post Construction Stormwater Permit. She said all of that has been handled at this time
through the project with the impervious area that is proposed. It is a high density project,
but they met the conditions that the state imposed on the project for stormwater control.

Mr. Shoemaker said putting in a sidewalk does not necessarily mean that there will be
curb or gutter on the side of the road.

M. Mortis said that is correct. We do not have a curb and gutter typical in the County
Ordinance; typically it ends up being valley, if it is required. She said in that particular
case, that road will eventually be widened and at that time NCDOT will determine what
type of typical will be used for that cross section for the street.

The Chair said from the road all the way to the right of way, including the ditch, would
not be changed regardless of whether there were sidewalks or not. He said the sidewalk
would be outside of all of that if we were to require it.

There being no further discussion, Ms. Mary Blakeney, MOTIONED, SECONDED by
M. Barry Shoemaker to Approve the Architectural Design Review for the Wallace Hills
Tack Shop. The vote was unanimous.

Mr. Koch said because of the way that ordinance is set up; any deviations have to meet
certain criteria. He thinks the criteria were in a general way articulated by some of the
Commission members who spoke. He suggests that the Board allows him to prepare the
appropriate findings for approval at the next meeting.

The Chair said the points that were made had to do with the topography and the slope off
the street and the setback being consistent with the setbacks of the other building.




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

Mr. Koch said and the other compatibility with the surrounding improvements and area.

Tt was the consensus of the Board to allow Mr. Koch to prepare the findings to be
approved at the next meeting. (See Attached Findings)

The Chair ordered a short recess to allow the County Attorney and the Attorney for the
applicant to talk.

New Business — Board of Adjustment Function:

The Chair introduced Petition VARN2010-00002, Applicant, Benjamin Small —
Variance

Mr. Eugene Divine acknowledged that he might have a perceived conflict of interest on
this case.

Mr. Koch asked Mr. Divine to specify the nature of the perceived conflict.

M. Divine said since the last time there was a meeting on this issue; he has had business
dealings with Mr. Small and his partner.

Mr. Koch said it is his understanding that Mr. Small has represented Mr. Divine on a
matter as an Attorney.

Mr. Divine said that is correct. He feels that he should be recused from the case.

The Chair MOTIONED, SECONDED by Ms. Shannon Frye to Recuse Mr. Divine.
The vote was unanimous.

Mr. Larry Ensley replaced Mr. Divine on the Board.

Mr. Danny Fesperman acknowledged that he is currently, as well as in the past, done
business with the law firm Hamilton, Moon, Stephens, Steele and Martin who are
representing Mr. Small.

The Chair asked Mr. Fesperman if his conflict is with the law firm and not Mr. Small.

Mr. Fesperman said that is correct, he currently has that law firm on retainer.

Mr. Koch said the attorney for Mr. Small is Mr. George Sistrunk and is a partner in that
firm. ,

Mr. George Sistrunk, Attorney, on behalf of Mr. Small, addressed the Board. He said Mr.
Koch advised him of the conflict issues and based on the conflict issues, he and Mr.
Small agree that Mr. Sistrunk should withdraw as his counsel to eliminate any conflict
issues. He said Mr. Small does not want to have the proceedings tainted in anyway.

10




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

Mr. Sistrunk requests on behalf of Mr. Small to have the hearing continued until the next
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on November 18, 2010. He said this would
allow time for him to prep Mr. Small to handle this himself or to obtain other counsel that
does not have the conflict issue that he and his firm have.

The Chair said if Mr. Sistrunk withdraws, that resolves Mr. Fesperman’s conflict. He said
the applicant is not really prepared to present the case tonight and it would need to be
continued until the next meeting.

There being no further discussion, Mr. Barry Shoemaker, MOTIONED, SECONDED
by Mr. Danny Fesperman to CONTINUE Petition VARN2010-00002, until the next
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting November 18, 2010.

Directors Report

Ms. Susie Morris, Planning and Zoning Manager addressed the Board stating that on
Tuesday, October 19, 2010, the Hairisburg Planning and Zoning Commission made a
recommendation to the Harrisburg Town Council to move forward with the Harrisburg
Area Land Use Plan.

Ms. Morris said we have not been able to proceed or make any progress with the inter-
local agreement. ‘

There being no further discussion, Mr. Larry Ensley MOTIONED, SECONDED by

to Mr. Tommy Porter to ADJOURN the meeting. The vote was unanimous. The meeting
ended at 8:20 p.m.

11




Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
October 21, 2010

Tod Berg, Chairan

izi ITTEDZ{/ :

Arlena B. Roberts
ATTEST BY:

Susie Morris
Planning and Zoning Manager

12




WALLACE HILL TACK SHOP
CASE ZN 2010-00106

FINDINGS OF FACT

A, GENERAL FINDINGS

1 This property is on a large tract in a location that is essentially rural in
character.
%, This tack shop has the characteristics of a country store, which

traditionally were located in some visual proximity to a country road, with the parking
between the road and the store building, consistent with pre-motorized vehicular days
when a “shopper” would ride his /her horse or bring his/her horse drawn carriage to the
entrance and tie the horses up near the front door.

B. SETBACKS

1. The above General Findings of Fact are incorporated by reference as
Findings regarding this issue.

2o The Ordinance requires a front building setback of no less than 15 feet and
no more than 25 feet. The proposed tack shop is approximately 67 feet from the Odell
School road right of way.

3. The proposed setback of 67 feet is in keeping with the rural character of
the area and with the concept of a country store, before zoning and setbacks became

prevalent.

C. BUILDING PLACEMENT

1. The above General Findings of Fact are incorporated by reference as
Findings regarding this issue.

2 The above Setback Findings of Fact are incorporated by reference as
Findings regarding this issue.

D. CONNECTIVITY AND SIDEWALKS

_ 1. The above General Findings of Fact are incorporated by reference as
Findings regarding this issue.

2 The Ordinance requires a minimum 5 foot sidewalk.




3. Because of the rural character of the area, there are no other sidewalks and
a sidewalk near the road would not connect to anything.

4, The plans call for sidewalks adjacent to the parking area and the building.

E. PARKING REQUIREMENTS

1. The above General Findings of Fact are incorporated by reference as
Findings regarding this issue.

2. The Ordinance requires that parking areas be located primarily to the rear
of the structure.

3. Historically, visitors to a country store expect to find the parking in front
of the building.

Based on the foregoing Findings, the Planning and Zoning Commission as the
Design Review Committee reach the following

CONCLUSIONS
The deviations sought by the applicant from the District Development Standards
in Chapter 5 of the Cabarrus County Zoning Ordinance are APPROVED, because such

deviations meet the following requirements of the Ordinance permitting such deviations:

1. The deviations provide for architectural design compatibility in relation to
the existing neighborhood.

2 The adjusted setbacks are compatible with surrounding development.

3. The deviations in site design are compatible with the context of the
surrounding neighborhood.




To:

From:
CcC:
Date:
Re:

. DEVELOPMENT

Planning and Zoning Commission

Susie Morris, AICP, CZQ, Planning and Zoning Manager

File

1/4/2012

Proposed Text Changes (Chapter 3 and Permitted Use Table)

Attached please find the following:

Draft Chapter 3

Draft Permitted Use Table (DRAFT 1)

Please look over the proposed text changes to Chapter 3 of the Zoning Ordinance. Chapter 3
would be completely replaced by the new Chapter 3. This is the first time that you are seeing
this document.

The DRAFT Permitted Use Table will combine the tables from Chapter 3, Chapter 7 and
Chapter 8 into one single table to be maintained and updated.

Additions to both of these documents are in red text. Deletions are in strikethrough text. Blue
text reflects changes since the last time you reviewed the document (Permitted Use Table).

If there are any items that you have questions or concerns about, please note those items so
that we can discuss the proposed changes at the meeting on Tuesday.

Also, please take another look at the revised DRAFT Permitted Use Table to see if there are
any uses that you feel have been missed on the table or items that you think may not be
categorized appropriately.




+Chapter 3, Establishment of Zoning Districts

Section 3-1 Introduction

The purpose of this Chapter is twofold. One, it is to establish types of zoning districts for grouping
similar and compatible land uses throughout Cabarrus County. Secondly, it is to set forth a "Table of
Permitted Uses" that lists types of land uses and their status in each district.

Section 3-2 How to use this Chapter

The description of zoning districts is set forth in Section 3-7. After a description of the zoning district, a
listing of uses follows. If you know your zone ing district and want to Understand what is allowed within
it, this section provides the answer. If, on the other hand, you have a use in mind and want to know
where it fits, find the use in the Table of Permitted Uses located at the end of this Chapter to understand
its status within the various zoning districts. A land use may be:

e Permitted by right (P)- This means that the land use is conS|dered completely compatlble in the
district and no further governmental review is needed.

o Permitted based on standards (PBS) - This means that the land use in question could be
compatible with the district as long as it meets certain standards. For example, a gas station
may be completely appropriate in a residential district if it is built on a smaller scale than the gas
stations found on major commercial corrldors with multlple pumps, twenty -four hour operatlon
and lit signage. Fhi

_pe#emoranee—ef—ﬂea&bte—zemng— Many ofthe PBS uses have more than ones

ala) aa¥alal a) a¥al
Sav o SERISISIR® CH—a c o & oo

uses that are con5|dered "PBS“ appear in the chart at the end of this ChapterSeveH—

o Conditional Use (C)- This means that the land use considered needs to be reviewed by a public
body, in this case, the Planning & Zéning Commission serving as a Board of Adjustment. Often,
these are land uses with the potential for far reaching consequences. A public airport is a good

example. The creation of an airport may profoundly affect an area's transportation system, may
‘ ‘greatly affect surrounding land use from a noise standpoint, etc. Accordingly, these types of land
use merit consideration and debate in a public forum. In order to assure compatibility with
surroundmg land use, reasonable conditions may be placed on the development of the
property. AII land uses that are conditional appear in the chart at the end of this Chapter.

o  Accessory use - These are land uses that are secondary, subordinate, and incidental to what
typically is the original land use or permitted use. Within the Table of Permitted Uses, all
accessory uses are listed as a separate type of use under their own heading of "Accessory". A
utility shed, for example, in the backyard of a residentially developed property is a good
example of an accessory use. They must be considered compatible with both the original use
and the surrounding land area. These uses cannot exist by themselves and they must be
accessory to another use. Occasionally, accessory uses are further modified as either based on

Chapter 3 Page 1 of 38



standards or conditional. See "Accessory Uses" within the Table of Permitted Uses at the end o f
this Chapter.
Section 3-3 Zoning districts designated and purposes listed
All land and water areas in Cabarrus County, except within the corporate limits of any municipality and
their respective extraterritorial zenes jurisdictions, if any, are divided into the following districts. Such
districts are designed to both assure the compatibility of land uses within each district and to partially

implement the officially adopted Cabarrus County Area Plans, and other planning documents which
serve as part of the overall county comprehensive plan.

Section 3-4 Standard zoning districts and standard zoning district categories

For the purpose of implementing this Ordinance, the following general zoning categories and specific
zoning district types are hereby created.

AGRICULTURAL: COMMERCIAL:
Agricultural/Open Space (AO) Office/lnst’itutional (01)

_ Office/limited commercial (‘LC)
RESIDENTIAL: ~ General commercial (GC)
Countryside residential (CR) R, T
Low density residential (LDR) k “INDUSTRIAL:
Medium density residential (MDR) | Limited industrial (LI)
High density residential/mixed use (HDR/MU)  General industrial (GI)

FLOATING:

* Planned Unit Development (PUD)

Section 3-5 Mkap of zoning districts

The boundaries of these districts are shown on maps entitled "Official Zoning Atlas of Cabarrus County."
The zoning atlas and all notations, references, and amendments made to it are hereby made a part of
this Ordinance and are kepf in the Office of the Zoning Administrator, available for public inspection.
Other supplements, in the form of maps, indexes, guides, illustrations, records, reports, interpretive
material and standards may be officially adopted, directly or by reference, to facilitate administration
and public understanding of the Official Zoning Atlas, or of regulations adopted for the zoning districts
or other divisions established thereby.

Section 3-6 Rules governing interpretation of district boundaries

a. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets, highways, or
alleys shall be construed to follow such center lines.

b. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as
following such lot lines.



¢Chapter 3, Establishment of Zoning Districts

c. Boundaries indicated as approximately following jurisdictional lines of .
municipalities/sanitary districts shall be construed as following such lines.

d. Boundaries indicated as following railroad lines shall be construed to be midway
between the main tracks.

e. Boundaries indicated as following shore lines shall be construed to follow such shore
lines, and in the event of change in the shore line, shall be construed as moving with the
actual shore line. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of
streams, rivers, canals, lakes, or other bodies of water shall be construed to follow such
center lines and in the event of change, construed as being the actual.

Boundaries indicated as parallei to or extensions of features indicated in (a) through (e) above
shall be construed. k

Distances not specifically indicated on the Official Zoning Atlas shall be determined by the scale of the
map. : !

f.  Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are at variance with those
shown on the Official Zoning Atlas, or in other circumstances not covered by (A) through
(F) above, the Zoning Administrator shaH interpret the district boundaries.

g Where a district boundary line divides a lot Which was in single ownership at the time of
passage of this Ordihanqé, the regulations for either portion of the lot may be extended
not to exceed one hundre’d.(lOD) feet beyond the district line into the remaining portion
of the lot. )

Section 3-7 Statements regarding the purbose of zoping districts

The following subsections more fully describé,the essential nature of each zoning district, explain the
rationale for its creation and list land uses either permitted (P), permitted based on standards (PBS), or
conditional (C). ‘

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT:

AGRICULTURAL/OPEN SPA_CE

This district is comprised mdstly of lands usually found on the eastern side of the County which, due to
physical characteristics such as soil type, topography, etc., should remain agrarian. To a lesser degree,
these are also those Iénds which are conducive to providing recreationally oriented open space. These
land areas should remain the farmland and undeveloped/forested land of the County. Public utilities will
not be planned for these areas. Consequently, residential uses that support those working and/or
owning the land, home occupations allied with existing residences, and very limited business endeavor
are envisioned as complementary to the area. In sum, the primary activity of these lands is agricultural -
housing and business are typically related to and supportive of the practice of modern day agriculture. It
is not, however, improbable that a small hamlet type settlement might evolve in this zoning district. As
to those areas constituting open space, manmade uses must take care to enhance and not detract from
the essential character of the area.

Chapter 3 Page 3 of 38




Rationale

Cabarrus County, due largely to its proximity to the Charlotte/Mecklenburg metropolitan area, isin a

growth mode which will, in all probability, continue. While the issue of farmland preservation may

ultimately be more driven by market economics, it still behooves policy makers to prudently attempt

seme-farmland preservation. Less a matter of market economics is the concept of retaining unspoiled,

undeveloped lands for future generations to enjoy.

USESN-FHE AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE ZONE-1/55S

PERMITTED USES

Agriculture Excluding Livestock
Agriculture Including Livestock
Agritourism, Accessory to Agriculture
Bulk Grain Storage

Cemetery

Dairy Processing

Family Care Home

Group Care Facility

Hatchery

Livestock Sales.

Manufactured Home (In Manufactured Home

Overlay District Oxhl.yb-See Chapter 4)
Nursery/Greenhouse

Sawerait

Single Family Detached Residential

Stables, Commercial

Wireldss Telecommunications Services, Stealth

Antannae, 65 feet or less )
PERMITTED BASED ON STANDARDS (PBS)
Accessory Apartment

Accé;mry Building

Auction House

Barn, Greenhouse as Primary Structure

‘Bed and Breakfast

Cemetery
Civic Organization Facility

Communications Tower, 911 Communications

Tower
Community Garden, Accessory Use

Contractor Office, Construction Equipment

Storage, Temporary Use

Contractor or Trade Shaps

Convenience Store with Petroleum Sales
Convenience Store without Petroleum Sales

Country Club with Golf Course



Dumpsters, Commercial Waste Containers,
Temporary Use

Ethanol Fuel Production (Residential District,
Private Use Only), Accessory Use

FEMA Trailers, Natural Disaster or Significant
Weather Event, Temporary Use

For Profit Temporary Sign, Temporary Use

(Existing Businesses)

Gas station

Golf Course, Public or Private
Home Occupation, General
Home Occupation, Rural

Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory to
Convenience Store

Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory to Gas

Stations

Kennel, Private

Landfill, Demolition (less than one acre)
P q -I l l i‘.

p q I -I o EE"I ', l l. g

Mobile-Personal Storage Unit, Renovation,
Temporary:Use

Mobile Personal-Stoerage Unit, Vacate or Occupy
Premises, 'I'empora\i‘y\_Use

Nursery/Daycare Center

Promotional Activities Involving the Display of
Goods or Merchandise, Temporary Use (Existing
Business)

Public Cultural Facility

¢Chapter 3, Establishment of Zoning Districts

Real Estate Office in Construction Trailer or Modular Unit,
Commercial /Mixed Use Projects, Temporary Use

Real Estate Office in Construction Trailer or
Modular Unit, Residential Projects, Temporary
Use

Real Estate Office in Model Home, Temporary
Use

Recyclable Materials Drop Off

Religious Institution (Total Seating Capacity 350
or Less)

Repair Shop, Automobile

Reﬁair Shpp, Farm Machinery

Repair Shop, Small Engine

Reét/ConvaIeS(‘:.e'ht Home with 10 Beds or Less

Restaurant, Excluding Drive-Thru

. Retail Sales, Shopper’s Goods

Sawmill

Scientific Research and Development, Accessory

to Agriculture
Swim Club, Tennis Club, Country Club

Temporary Agricultural Sign (Seasonal Sales on
Site), Temporary Use

Temporary Construction Sign, Temporary Use
(&)

Temporary Dwelling for Large Construction
Projects, Temporary Use

Temporary Residence in Mobhile Home during
Construction of New Home on Same Site, Temporary
Use

Towing Service, Accessory to Automobile Repair

Chapter 3 Page 5 of 38




Towing Service, with Towed Vehicle Storage

Yard (No Salvage or Part Sales)
Trail Head, Accessory

Wind Energy Facility, Accessory Use, On Site Use
Only

Wireless Telecommunications Services, Co-

location
CONDITIONAL USES
Airstrip

Animal Hospital
Animal Shelter
Correctional Facility
Colleges & Universities

Day Camp, Summer Camp, Civic Group €amp

Facility

Elementary, &secendary- Middle and High

Schools

Kennel, Commercial>

Landfill, Demolition (one acre or more)
Landfill, Sanitary

Multimedia Production & Distribution Complex

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS:

COUNTRYSIDE RESIDENTIAL

Public Service Facility

Public Use Facility

Race shop/Race Team complex

Reception Facilities

Recreational Facility, Outdoor

Recreational Therapy Facility (Rural Setting)

PR R [ SO\ ([, SRy NAR D - [oRericha ey
Recreational Trail, Greenway, or Blueway

Connectors

Religious Institution (Total Seating Capacity 351
or More) :

Religious Institution Including School

Rest/Convalescent Home with More Than 10
Beds

-;!?!"l‘),<3 {i n Range with Outdoor Target Practice
Slaughter House/Meat Packing

Sports and Recreation Instruction on Camp
Trade & Vocational Schools

Trail Head, Primary Use Site
Veterinarian

Wireless Telecommunications Services

Lands in this district have a strong rural, pastoral feel. Natural environmental elements such as tree
lines, small ponds, rock formations, and manmade elements such as pasture fencing are to be retained,
if at all possible. Although the area is capable of handling higher densities of development, development
is kept at very low overall densities. Development includes only the standard single family detached
dwelling. Fhesite-sensitive-desigh-conceptis-carried-eut-thred j

alla¥a ArmManeca n a¥a a¥al adc on i
S = v



¢Chapter 3, Establishment of Zoning Districts

Rationale

This is a land use district was created as a direct result of the County's systematic area planning process.

As a reaction to the growth of the past decade (as much as 80% in some townships) many residents are

anxious to see their areas retain the appeal that inspired the resident to make his/her original

investment. This district helps implement a growth management philosophy before the fact rather than

after. Even-whenthearea-hasaccessto-publicu

ha gua dan VATY amain rao ivehlow. In

summary, the principle purpose of this district is to provide some land area in the County fora

permanent country/rural residential life style.

USESIN-THE COUNTRYSIDE RESIDENTIAL ' '™

PERMITTED USES

Agriculture Excluding Livestock
Agriculture Including Livestock
Agritourism, Accessory to Agriculture
Cemetery

Dairy Processing

Family Care H\dme

Group Care Facility

Livestock Sales

Manufactured Home (In Manufactured Home

Overlay District Only-See Chapter 4)
Nursery/Greenhouse

Single Family Detached Residential
Stables-Commereia!

Wireless Telecommunications Services, Stealth

Antannae, 65 feet or less

PERMITTED BASED ON STANDARDS (PBS)

ZQN-E

Accessory Apartment

Accessory Building
O

- Auction House

Barn,.Greenhouse as Primary Structure
Bed ahd Breakfast

Cemetery

Civic Organization Facility

Community Garden, Accessory Use

Contractor Office, Construction Equipment

Storage, Temporary Use

Convenience Store with Petroleum Sales
Convenience Store without Petroleum Sales
Country Club with Golf Course

Dumpsters, Commercial Waste Containers,
Temporary Use

Ethanol Fuel Production (Residential District,
Private Use Only), Accessory Use

Chapter 3 Page 7 of 38



FEMA Trailers, Natural Disaster or Significant Real Estate Office in Model Home, Temporary

Weather Event, Temporary Use

For Profit Temporary Sign, Temporary Use Religious Institution (Total Seating Capacity 350
(Existing Business) or Less)

Gas station Rest/Convalescent Home with 10 Beds or Less
Golf Course, Public or Private Restaurant, Excluding Drive-Thru

Home QOccupation, General Sawmill

Home Occupation, Rural Scientific ['{eséarchl'and Development, Accessory

to Agriculture
Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory to

Convenience Store Stables, Commercial
Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory to Gas Swim Club, Tennis Club, Country Club
Stations

Temporary Agricultural Sign (Seasonal Sales on
Kennel, Private Site), Temporary Use
Landfill, Demolition (less than one acre) _ * Temporaty Construction Sign, Temporary Use
Meobile-home-—classH s Temporary Dwelling for Large Construction

Projects, Temporary Use
Temporary Residence in Mohile Home during

Mobhile Personal Storage Unit Rehovation i . -
; & < o ; - Construction of New Home on Same Site, Temporary
Temporary Use Use

Mobhile Personal Storage Unit, Vacate or Qccupy - i
bt = e ' e Mrail Head, Accessory Use

Premises, Temporary Use

‘ Wind Energy Facility, Accessory Use, On Site Use

Nursery/\ Daycare Center Only

.

Promoticn’iI’AC“'(iv\i"cies Involving the Display of . o : "
Rt & piay Wireless Telecommunications Services, Co-

Goods or Merchandise, Temporary Use (Existing .
B s el ( & location

Business)

CONDITIONAL USES
Public Cultural Facility

Animal Hospital
Real Estate Office in Construction Trailer or Modular Unit,

Commercial /Mixed Use Projects, Temporary Use Animal Shelter

Real Estate Office in Construction Trailer or Colleges & Universities

Modular Unit, Residential Projects, Temporary
Like Communications Tower, 911 Tower



Day Camp, Summer Camp, Civic Group Camp
Facility

Elementary &secendary Middle and High
Schools

Kennel, Commercial

Multimedia Distribution & Production Complex
Public Service Facility

Public Use Facility

Reception Facilities

Recreational Facility, Outdoor

Recreational Therapy Facility (Rural Setting)
Recreational Trail, Greenway, or Blueway

Connectors

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

+Chapter 3, Establishment of Zoning Districts

Religious Institution (Total seating capacity 351
or more)

Religious Institution Including School

Rest/Convalescent Home with More Than 10
Beds

Shooting Range with Outdoor Target Practice
Slaughter House/Meat Packing

Sports and Recreation Instruction on Camp
Trail-Head, Primary Use

Veterinarian

Wireless Telecommunications Services

This district is intended to permit development with alow density residential community character. This

district allows conventional, open space and amenity subdivisions. Fhese zones This district are is

located where public utilities either are available or are envisioned available within the next two to five

years.

RATIONALE"

This district is designed to provide permanent protection for those who want to live in a low density

residential envj\ronment'. The district, while focused on single-family residential development, is

desigﬁegl to aIIoW a wide variety of residential types.

~

USESIN-LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL USES:
Permitted Uses

Agriculture Excluding Livestock
Agritourism, Accessory to Agriculture
Family Care Home

Group Care Facility

Manufactured Home (In Manufactured Home

Overlay District Only-See Chapter 4)
Nursery/Greenhouse
Semi-Attached House

Single Family Detached Residential

Wireless Telecommunications Services, Stealth

Antennae, 65 feet or less

Chapter 3 Page 9 of 38



PERMITTED BASED ON STANDARDS (PBS) Golf Course, Public or Private

Accessory Apartment Home Occupation, General
Accessory Building Home Occupation, Rural
Agriculture-Female Chickens, Limited Number, Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory 1o
Less than 5 Acres Convenience Store
g, Accessory to Gas

Agriculture, Including Livestock lce Production, Dispensing
Stations :
Automated Teller Machine, As Accessory
ltinerant Merchant, Temporary Use
Bank/Financial Institution/Automated Teller

Machine Landfill, Demolition (less than one acre)
Barn, Greenhouse as Primary Structure Mobile-home-classt

Bed and Breakfast Mobile-office - temporary

Cemetery I\/lebi_le Personal Storage Unit, Renovation,

_Temporary Use

Civic Organization Facility 5

Mobile Personal Storage Unit, Vacate or Occupy
Community Garden, Accessory Use = =

A — ) Premises, Temporary Use
Contractor Office, Construction Equipment : S .
‘ ’ [ERON EREEUR Nursery/Daycare Center

Storage, Temporary Use

Promotional Activities Involving the Display of
Conveni Store with Petroleum Sales i i
venience Sto It Goods or Merchandise, Temporary Use (Existing

Convenience Store without Petroleum Sales Business)

Public Cultural Facility

Country Clulr with Golf Colrse

Dumpsters, Commercial \/A\lac“i‘f—\ Cénbsiners eal Estate Office in Construction Trailer or Modular Unit,

* o =43y, . 1 CH v > S | K wy " i S0, . -

Ternporary Use- Commercial /Mixed Use Projects, Temporary Use
r B edeide £ P T e = =

Ethanol Fuel Production (Residential District, Real Estate Office in Construction Trailer or

Private Use Only), Accessory Use Modular Unit, Residential Projects, Temporary

y] > J

Use

FEMA Trailers, Natural Disaster or Significant

Weather Event, Temporary Use Real Estate Office in Model Home, Temporary

o 7

Use

For Profit Temporary Sign, Temporary Use

Religious Institution (Total seating capacity 350

or less)

(Existing Business)

Gas station
Rest/Convalescent Home with 10 Beds or Less

Chapter 3 Page 10 of 38




Restaurant, Excluding Drive-Thru Elementary 8&seeendary Middle and High

Schools
Scientific Research and Development, Accessory
to Agriculture Public Service Facility
Stables, Commercial Public Use Facility
Swim Club, Tennis Club, Country Club Recreational Facility, Outdoor

Temporary Agricultural Sign (Seasonal Sales on ational Trail, Greenway, or Blueway

Site), Temporary Use Connectors

femporary Construction Sign, Temporary Use Religious Institution (Total seating capacity 351
_ or more)

Temporary Dwelling for Large Construction ' ,

Projects, Temporary Use Religious Institution Including School

Temporary Residence in Mobile Home during Rest/Convalescent Home with More Than 10

Construction of New Home on Same Site, Tempofary Beds
Use
Trail-Head, Primary Use

Trail Head, Accessory Use )
Wireless Telecommunications Services

Wind Energy Facility, Accessory Use, On Site Use
2] | 7’

Only

Wireless Telecommunications Services, Co=-

location
CONDITIONAL USES
Colleges & U_n\iversitie‘s‘

Communications Tower, 911 Tower

MEDIUIVI DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

This district is intended to permit development with a moderately high density community character.
This district allows open space and amenity subdivisions. Residential development options for this zere
district include a variety of housing types, including townhouses. This sezenes district-are is located

where public utilities either are available. erare-envisioned-avatlable-within-the-next-tenyears:

RATIONALE

This district is designed to provide permanent protection for those who want to live in a moderately
high density residential environment. The district is designed to provide the principal location for a wide
variety of residential types.

Chapter 3 Page 11 of 38



MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT USES:

PERMITTED USES Contractor Office, Construction Equipment

Storage, Temporary Use
Agriculture, Excluding Livestock

Convenience Store without Petroleum Sales
Agritourism, Accessory to Agriculture

Country Club with Golf Course
Family Care Home

Dumpsters, Commercial Waste Containers,

Group Care Facility Temporary Use

Manufactured Home (In Manufactured Home - e . o s
e Home | RS Ethanol Fuel Production (Residential District,
Overlay District Only-See Chapter 4 < :

’ ' - per 4) Private Use Only), Accessory Use

“ERAA Toatlave Matinral MNieactar s San i rand
FEMA Trailers, Natural Disaster ar Signiticant

Nursery/Greenhouse
) A ther Event Tamnnrar 5e
Sarmi-Attachod House Weather Ev __m, lfemporary Use

Single Family Detached Residential For Profit Temporary Sign, Temporary Use

, - - . ek Golf Course ic or Private
Wireless Telecommunications Services, Stealth Solf Course, Public or Private

Antannae, 65 feet or less ? oS
- Horne Occupation, General

PERMITTED BASED ON STANDARDS (PBS)

Home Occupation, Rural

Accessory Apartment - ,
3 o ltinerant Merchant, Temporary Use (Existing

2 3 c
Accessory Building Business)

. . . . o )'.Wpli it ‘\.S"\\:‘:l\v‘;.\"r“r A 2550l —:(l
Agriculture-Female Chickens, Limited Number, Ice Production, Dispensing, Accessory to
; i - Convenience Store

Less than 5 Acres Convenlence sSt<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>